
Sierra County Commission 
Sierra County Commission Chambers  

1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Tuesday February 20th, 2024 

AMENDED

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA: 
(facebook.com/SCEmergencyServices) (Local radio KCHS 101.9) 

Call to Order: 10:00 AM Regular Meeting 

Roll Call:   Travis Day-Chairman  Shelly K. Trujillo-Clerk 
James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair  Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
Hank Hopkins -Commissioner  Amber Vaughn-County Manager 

Pledge of Allegiance 

New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures. 

Introduction of Guests 

I. Approval of Agenda
II. Approval of Minutes

A. Regular Meeting – January 23rd, 2023
III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes
IV. Consent Agenda:

A. Resolution No. 110-221 Accounts Payable
B. Resolution No. 110-222 Indigent Claims
C. Indigent Burial B2024-004

V. Presentations/Reports:
A. Years of Service Awards
B. Department Reports
C. Flood Commission Report
D. Planned Prescribed Fire and Wild Fire on Black Range Ranger District and Gila National

Forest for the 2024 Fire Season
VI. Board of Finance:

A. January Reconciliation
VII. Old Business:

VIII. New Business:
A. Road Vacation Request VR24-001 for portion of 2nd Street in Chloride
B. Approval of 2025 SP Request for Funding
C. Approval of 2025 SB Request for Funding
D. Approval of 2025 CAP Request for Funding

IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurement:
A. SunZia Community Benefits Agreement

X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations:
A. Resolution 110-223 Resolution Authorizing Employer Pick-up of Member Contributions for

Determining Tax Treatment Under the Internal Revenue Code



 
B. Resolution 110-224 Compensation for Notarial Services 
C. Resolution 110-225 A Resolution Supporting Luna County in Their Opposition to the 

Designation of the Mimbres Peaks National Monument  
D. Resolution 110-226 Setting the Salaries of Sheriff’s Executive Assistant and the Chief 

Deputy Clerk 
E. Resolution 110-227 A Resolution and Order Approving Request of El Rio Sol Transmission 

LLC to Use Certain Roads in Sierra County and Other Matters 
XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H): 

Pending and Threatened Litigation: 
Cauoette v. Bd. of County Comm'rs of Sierra County 
Personnel 
Real Estate: 

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session:  
A. Adjourn 
 

 
Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, March 19th, 2024, at 10:00 AM. Items for 
the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 5:00pm on the 
Monday the week before the meeting. 
 

 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.  
Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats. 
Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 
 
 



 

      
          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
        JANUARY 23, 2024 

 
   

CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting  
 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, January 23, 2024, at the Sierra County 
Commission Chambers, 1712 N Date St, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board: Shelly K. Trujillo  
 
 County Attorney: David Pato 
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
   
Tim Kuzdrowski, Josh Baker, Chuck Wentworth-Sentinel, Ruben Lucero, 
Michelle Atwell, James Prendamano, Barbara Hill, Glenda McCauley, Ernie 
Armijo, Candace Chavez, Ryan Williams, Keith Whitney, Jocelyn Holguin 
             

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
A. Regular Meeting-December 19, 2023 
 
 

 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
January 23, 2024 
Page 2   

 

 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the minutes as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  
 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 
 
Tim Kuzdrowski stated that he has contacted the County and nobody will 

return his calls.  Would like some transparency. 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 
A.  Resolution No. 110-207- Account Payables 
 
B.  Resolution No. 110-208- Budget Adjustments 
 
C. Resolution No. 110-209-Indigent Claims 
 
D.  Indigent Burial 24-01 
 
E.  Claim of Exemption 24-001 (Good Springs LLC) 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS: 
 
A.  Years of Service award 
B.  Department Reports 
C.  Flood Commissioner Report-No Report 
D.  PreReal Investments-See Attached 
 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE: 
 

A.  December Reconciliation 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the April Reconciliation as 
presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A.  Petition for Road Vacation VR24-001: Appointment of Sharon Lluna, 

LaNeer Wry and Bruce Swingle as Freeholders to View the Request to 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
January 23, 2024 
Page 3   

 

Vacate a Portion of Second Street in Chloride with Ronnie Chavez and 
Byron Wilson as Alternates 

 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Petition for Road 

Vacation VR24-001: Appointment of Sharon Lluna, LaNeer Wry and Bruce 
Swingle as Freeholders to View the Request to Vacate a Portion of Second 
Street in Chloride with Ronnie Chavez and Byron Wilson as Alternates as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

 
B.  Appointments of Board & Committee Members 
 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Appointments of Board & 

Committee Members as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 
voting yes.  

 
     

IX. CONTRACTS – AGREEMENTS – PROCUREMENT 
 
A.  John Deere-SPA/LACTF-Road 
   
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve John Deere-

SPA/LACTF-Road as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
B.  RLC Services (Lynn’s Landscaping)-SPA/LACTF-Road 
 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve RLC Services (Lynn’s 

Landscaping)-SPA/LACTF-Road as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair 
Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 
1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
 

X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS 
 

A.  Resolution No. 110-210-Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair of Sierra 
County Commission 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to appoint Travis Day as Chair.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to appoint Jim Paxon as Vice-Chair.  
Commission Chair Day SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
January 23, 2024 
Page 4   

 

 
B.  Resolution No. 110-211-Sierra County Manager Authority 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-211-Sierra 
County Manager Authority as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 
 
C.  Resolution 110-212-Open Meetings Act 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution 110-212-Open 
Meetings Act as presented.  Commission Chair Day SECONDED the motion.  
Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
D.  Resolution No. 110-213-Parliamentary Procedures and Robert’s Rules of 
Order 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-213-
Parliamentary Procedures and Robert’s Rules of Order as presented.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
E.  Resolution No. 110-214-Public Participation at Sierra County 
Commission Meetings 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-214-Public 
Participation at Sierra County Commission Meetings as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
F.  Resolution No. 110-215-Signature Authority on County Checks 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-215-
Signature Authority on County Checks as presented.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner 
Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
G.  Resolution No. 110-216-Grant Signatory 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-216-Grant 
Signatory as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
H.  Resolution No. 110-217-Establishing Depositories 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
January 23, 2024 
Page 5   

 

 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-217-
Establishing Depositories as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED 
the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

I.  Resolution No. 110-218-Public Notice Describing Procedures for Requests 
for Inspection of Public Records 

 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-218-Public 
Notice Describing Procedures for Requests for Inspection of Public Records 
as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  
Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
J.  Resolution No. 110-219-Resolution Supporting Utilization of 
Constitutional Referendum Process 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-219-
Resolution Supporting Utilization of Constitutional Referendum Process as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
K.  Resolution No. 110-220-Resolution Adopting an Amended Organizational 
Chart 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-220-
Resolution Adopting an Amended Organizational Chart as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
 

  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H): 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for 

Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all 
Commissioners present voting yes.   
 
            District 1 – Yes 
 District 2 – Yes 
 District 3 – Yes 

 
            PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 
 
            Rainer v. Sierra County 
                                                                
           PERSONNEL: 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
January 23, 2024 
Page 6   

 

      
            REAL ESTATE:  
 
            DISPOSAL OF REAL PROPERTY 
 
            XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was taken, 
with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

 
 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  
 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday, January 23, 2024 at 10:00 A.M. at the 
Sierra County Commission Chambers at 1712 N Date, Truth or 
Consequences, New Mexico. 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to adjourn the meeting. Commission Vice-
Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
January 23, 2024 
Page 7   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 23rd day of January, 2024. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 
 

   
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-221 
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PAYMENT OF CLAIMS THROUGH THE PERIOD 
BEGINNING JANUARY 1ST, 2024 

AND 
ENDING JANUARY 31ST, 2024 

 
WHEREAS, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF SIERRA COUNTY, NEW 
MEXICO, MEETING IN REGULAR PUBLIC SESSION ON FEBRUARY 20TH, 2024 
DESIRES TO PROVIDE FOR THE EQUITABLE AND REASONABLE PAYENT OF 
CLAIMS DUE AND ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, AND; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT CLAIMS, PURCHASE VOUCHERS AND 
WARRANTS DETAILED AND ATTACHED HERETO, PAYABLE FROM THE VARIOUS 
FUNDS, IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,080,254.78 ARE PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED 
ON THIS 20TH  DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024. 
                                                                                        
   BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
   SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  
  
 
   ____________________________ 
ATTEST:   TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
   ____________________________ 
   HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 
 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
SHELLY K. TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER 
 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Shelly Trujillo 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael D. Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

 Glenn Hamilton 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150 

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-894-2840 

James E. Paxon 
District 1 

575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
District 3 

575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
District 2 

575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn, County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

 

1712 N. Date St. 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

 



























































































































































    
  

    

    

    

    

    

  

  

  

  



 

 

  
  

    
   

  

   
 

   
     
   
  

 

   

    

    

    

  

 

  

  
   

   

   

   
   
  

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



    

 

  
   



   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
     

   
         

  

 

  

 

 

 

  

 
 

 
  
    

 

    

  

              

             

                
   

 

 
 

  

 

 
 



     

  

 

    
  

     
    

    
    

  

           
              

             
           

             
           

              
              

  

             
           

   
  

    

 

 

 



  
       

    
    

   

 

    

  

 

           

   
          

        
         

          
             

       

           
  

          

        
    

          
        

          
         

           
         

           
   

        
          

        

              
     

      
          

          
           

        
         
        

          

  
 

  

      
         

          

      
      
        
         

         
      

        
     

   
       

      
      

        
        
          

          
      

         
         

         
          

       
          

       

          
       

 
 

          
        

     

             

          

      



  
  

    

  
  

  

 

  

 

  
 

    

            

              

    
     

 

            

    

   

  

    

      

 
   

 

     

 

   

 

 

                     

      

 

    
     

                    
                     

            

      

       

  

 

 

  

 

 





   
   

   

  

 

  

  

   

   

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

   

        

              

                   

   

           

                 

               

              

 

  

  

 

   

   
          





 

  

  

      
  

       

      

   

        

   

      

    

      

    

      

    

      

         

      

    

    

    

         

   

      

        

  

   

 

  

























QUITCLAIM DEED OF VACATION 
 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) provides the procedure for 
discontinuance of public roads by Boards of County Commissioners; and, 

 
WHEREAS, Edmund Family Trust, Donald Edmund Trustee, whose address is 121 Wall 

St., Winston, NM 87943, requested the Sierra County Board of County Commissioners to vacate 
the public road described below; and,  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 (1905) a board of commissioners 

of three freeholders of Sierra County viewed the public road described below; and  

 
WHEREAS, the board of commissioners of three freeholders recommended 

discontinuance of the public road described below; and 

 
WHEREAS, during a duly noticed public meeting held on February 20, 2024, the Sierra 

County Board of County Commissioners, ordered vacated, the following described public road in 
Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 
 SECOND STREET BETWEEN CONCORD STREET & HANCOCK STREET –  

TOWNSITE OF CHLORIDE 
 

NOW, THERFORE, the County of Sierra hereby quitclaims, vacates and abandons the above-
described public road in Sierra County, New Mexico: 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, New 
Mexico, have caused this instrument to be signed for and in behalf of said Sierra County, New 
Mexico on this 20th day of February, 2024. 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF SIERRA COUNTY 

 

__________________________ 

TRAVIS DAY, CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

JAMES PAXON, VICE-CHAIR 

 

__________________________ 

HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 

 

 

ATTEST BY:   

 

______________________________________ 

SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK  

















































1 
 

Agreement No. _____ 

El Rio Sol Transmission Line Community Benefits Agreement 
 
This El Rio Sol Transmission Line Community Benefits Agreement (“El Rio Sol CBA”) is 
made and executed on this ____ of __________, 2023, by and between El Rio Sol Transmission, 
LLC, a Delaware limited liability company ("El Rio Sol"). and the County of Sierra, a political 
subdivision of the State of New Mexico (“County”) (El Rio Sol and County each a "Party", and 
collectively the "Parties"), for the benefit of the residents of Sierra County as related to the 
construction by El Rio Sol, and/or other development entities of a new 500 kilovolt electric 
transmission line (the "Line") through Sierra County. 

RECITAL 

WHEREAS, El Rio Sol intends to develop a high voltage electric transmission line anticipated to 
be approximately 520-miles long spanning parts of New Mexico and Arizona in order to convey 
up to 1,500 megawatts of renewable energy from New Mexico and Arizona to homes, offices and 
communities in the Southwestern United States: and 

WHEREAS, solar and wind renewable energy generation ("Renewable Generation") is a 
valuable and abundant resource in New Mexico; and 

WHEREAS, encouraging Renewable Generation is a priority of the State of New Mexico. as 
identified in § 5-18-2, 62-16-2. 62-16A-4, & 71-7-2 NMSA (1978); and 

WHEREAS, the Line is anticipated to locate approximately 71 miles of its transmission line 
through Sierra County; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to cooperate in the development of the Line and address some of the 
significant needs of local residents through this Line. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the above premises and mutual covenants and agreements 
herein set forth, the Parties do hereby agree to execute this El Rio Sol CBA and agree as follows: 

I. Definitions 

"Annual Report" has the meaning set forth in Section III below. 

"Close of Construction Financing" shall mean the date on which the full notice to proceed is issued 
to the contractor for the Line. 

"Commercial Operation Date" shall mean the date on which the Line is first transmitting 
commercial quantities of electricity for sale. 

"County" has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph above. 

"El Rio Sol" has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph above. 

"El Rio Sol CBA" has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph above. 



2 
 

"Health, Safety and Welfare Projects" are County expenditures that protect County residents, 
promote the physical and emotional health of County residents, or that enable equitable access to 
services and opportunities, encourage social interaction, or benefit the environment. 

"Line" has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph above. 

"Linear Line Mile" shall mean the length of the Line measured in miles (rounded to the nearest 
tenth of a mile) located in the County, as calculated by El Rio Sol's project engineer. 

"Party or "Parties" has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph above. 

"Per Mile Contribution" shall have the meaning, set forth in Section II below. 

"Record of Decision" will be issued by the Bureau of Land Management approving El Rio Sol’s 
request for right-of-way on federal lands management by the BLM. 

"Term" means the period starting from the execution of this El Rio Sol CBA and ending seven 
years thereafter, or at the Commercial Operation Date, whichever is soonest. 

II. Responsibilities of El Rio Sol 

In order to support the community and meet some of the needs identified, El Rio Sol also 
commits to perform the following: 

El Rio Sol agrees to contribute $20,000 per Linear Line Mile ("Per Mile Contribution"), 
which is anticipated to be up to approximately $1,420,000 (total line miles in Sierra 
County 
will be subject to the Record of Decision), to the County on the following schedule: 

a) 2.5% of the anticipated Per Mile Contribution (anticipated to be $35,500) 
within thirty days (30) of execution of this El Rio Sol CBA; 

b) 5% of the anticipated Per Mile Contribution (anticipated to be $71,000) on 
or before December 15, 2024; 

c) 5% of the anticipated Per Mile Contribution (anticipated to be $71,000) on 
or before December 15, 2025; and 

d) 5% of the anticipated Per Mile Contribution (anticipated to be $71,000) on 
or before December 15, 2026. 

Upon the Close of Construction Financing, El Rio Sol will calculate the Total Linear Line 
Miles as determined by the Record of Decision. El Rio Sol will then calculate the unpaid 
balance of the Per Mile Contribution by subtracting the amounts already paid to the County 
from the Per Mile Contribution (the “Remaining Per Mile Contribution”). El Rio Sol 
will complete payments of the Per Mile Contribution on the following schedule: 

e) 30% of the Remaining Per Mile Contribution within 30 days of the Close 
of Construction Financing; 



3 
 

f) 70% of the Remaining Per Mile Contribution within 30 days of the 
Commercial Operation Date. 

The Per Mile Contribution shall be used by the County to support Health Safety 
and Welfare Projects. 

III. Monitoring, Timelines, and Enforcement 

The Parties intend for the rights and obligations created by this El Rio Sol CBA to be both 
continuing in nature and cooperative, such that both Parties work together with due diligence and 
good faith in furtherance of the terms and conditions of this El Rio Sol CBA. 

El Rio Sol shall annually, beginning one year from the execution hereof, prepare an annual 
report to the County detailing (1) the general status of relevant permitting. development, 
construction, and operation of the Line; (2) an anticipated timeline for payments pursuant to 
this El Rio Sol CBA; and (3) a summary of any payments made pursuant to this El Rio Sol CBA 
(the "Annual Report"). Upon receipt of the Annual Report, the County will provide to El Rio 
Sol a brief description of how the Per Mile Contribution has been expended to the date of the 
Annual Report. 

El Rio Sol will execute and perform each provision outlined in Section II within the timeframe 
set forth herein; provided, however, that neither El Rio Sol nor County will have any obligation 
to perform under this El Rio Sol CBA if El Rio Sol elects to terminate as set forth in Section V 
below. 

IV. County Support Obligations 

The County will budget and use the contributions provided herein in accordance with the purposes 
set forth in this El Rio Sol CBA. To facilitate the mutual obligations provided herein the County 
will promptly review and process any requests and applications related to development of the Line 
in accordance with County regulations. 

V. Expenses/Termination 

The Parties agree that (i) El Rio Sol will perform or cause to have performed the items set forth in 
Section II above at its expense and (ii) County will perform or cause to have performed the items 
set forth in Section IV above at its expense. 

This El Rio Sol CBA will remain in full force and effect for the Term, except that it can be 
terminated immediately in writing under the following circumstances: 

 
1) The Parties may mutually agree in writing to modify or revoke any and/or all 

provisions of this El Rio Sol CBA, or to terminate it; 

2) By El Rio Sol, unilaterally in its discretion, upon the abandonment of its pursuit of 
permitting or construction of the Line, or the permitting process causes the Line to 
be routed outside of the County. 



4 
 

At the end of the Term, with mutual agreement from the Parties and/or their designated 
representatives, this El Rio Sol CBA may be renewed under the same and/or any subsequent 
modified terms and conditions for an additional mutually agreed term. 

VI. Miscellaneous 

1) This El Rio Sol CBA will be binding on each of the Parties hereto and their 
respective personal representatives, executives, agents, attorneys, principals, agents, 
and assigns. El Rio Sol may assign this El Rio Sol CBA to another entity developing 
the Line by providing written notice thereof to the County. Upon assumption of the 
obligations in this El Rio Sol CBA by the assignee, El Rio Sol shall be released from 
all obligations hereunder. 

2) The Parties agree that full and adequate consideration has been given by each 
Party hereto and each Party acknowledges the sufficiency and adequacy of said 
consideration. 

3) The Parties acknowledge that no promise, agreement, statement or representation, 
whether oral or written, not herein expressed has been made to or relied upon by any 
one of them and that this El Rio Sol CBA contains the entire agreement between the 
Parties. 

4) The recitals are incorporated as a part of this El Rio Sol CBA. 

5) If any term, provision, or clause within this El Rio Sol CBA will be determined 
by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void. or unenforceable, only 
that particular term, provision, or clause will be nullified. The remainder of the 
El Rio Sol CBA will continue to be in full force and effect. 

6) This El Rio Sol CBA will be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of New Mexico without regard to its conflict of laws provisions. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
  



5 
 

El Rio Sol Transmission LLC 
 
 
By:         Dated:     
Name: 
Its: 
 
 
 

Sierra County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
By:         Dated:     
Name: 
Its: 
 

















 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-223 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EMPLOYER PICK-UP OF MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS FOR 
DETERMINING TAX TREATMENT UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE 

 
WHEREAS, the employees of Sierra County, with few exceptions, are members of the Public 
Employees Retirement Association of New Mexico; and 
 
WHEREAS, members have mandatory PERA contributions deducted from their compensation 
and paid to PERA; and 
 
 WHEREAS, members must pay federal income tax on the mandatory PERA contributions 
deducted from their compensation; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code provides for the exclusion of such 
contributions from current income if the contributions are picked-up by the members’ employer; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the Governing Body of Sierra County has the authority to establish the 
compensation plan(s) for employees of Sierra County;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the State of New Mexico, acting by and through 
the Public Employees Retirement Association, that Sierra County, as employer, shall pick-up the 
member contributions required of all PERA members in its employ. The picked-up member 
contributions shall be treated as employer contributions for the purpose of determining tax 
treatment under the Internal Revenue Code. Member contributions picked-up shall not be 
included in the employee’s gross income for tax purposes until such time as the picked-up 
contributions are distributed by refund or annuity payments.  
 
Sierra County shall pick-up the member contributions from funds established and available in the 
payroll account, which funds would otherwise have been designated as member contributions, 
deducted from the member’s salary and paid to PERA. Member contributions picked-up 
pursuant to this resolution shall be treated for all other purposes the same as member 
contributions made prior to the effective date of this resolution. 
 
Sierra County will ensure that it has the expertise and equipment to implement the change in 
payroll records and the preparation of W-2 forms at the end of each calendar year.  



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Adoption of this resolution is applicable to, and incorporates by reference, Sierra County 
resolution that adopted the following Coverage Plans: PERA Municipal General Plan 2 and 
Municipal Police Plan 4.  
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF SIERRA 
COUNTY THIS 20TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2024 
       

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 Travis Day, Commissioner 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Commissioner 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
 

 



 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
 

SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-224 
 

COMPENSATION FOR NOTARIAL SERVICES 
 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Commission met upon notice of a duly noticed regular County 
Commission Meeting on February 20, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County Administration 
Building, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 4-38-1 (1884) the powers of a county as a body 
politic and corporate shall be exercised by a board of county commissioners; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Section 4-37-1 et seq. NMSA 1978 provides that counties may adopt those 
resolutions and ordinances, not inconsistent with statutory or constitutional limitations placed on 
counties, to discharge those powers necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the 
health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the 
county and its inhabitants; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Article 10 Section 14 of the New Mexico Constitution, referred to as the anti-
donation clause, which provides “[n]either the state, nor any county, school district, or 
municipality ... shall directly or indirectly lend or pledge its credit, or make any donation to or in 
aid of any person, association, or public or private corporation ....”; and,    
 
WHEREAS, consistent with its obligations under Article 10, Section 14 of the New Mexico 
Constitution, the County of Sierra recognizes the need to establish fair compensation for notarial 
services provided by county employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is imperative to ensure accessibility and affordability of notarial services to 
residents and businesses within the county; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County: 

 



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

1. Effective immediately, the compensation for notarial services provided by county 

employees shall be fixed at $5.00 per document. 

2. Payment for notarial services shall be made by check payable to the County of Sierra, or 

by credit card if available. 

3. County employees authorized to perform notarial services shall adhere to all applicable 

laws and regulations governing notarial acts, including but not limited to verifying the 

identity of signers and maintaining appropriate records. 

4. This resolution shall be effective upon passage and shall remain in effect until amended or 

repealed by further action of the Board of County Commissioners. 

5. The Clerk of the Board is hereby directed to cause a copy of this resolution to be posted in 

prominent locations within county offices where notarial services are offered and to 

provide copies to all county employees authorized to perform notarial acts. 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 23rd day of January, 2024. 

       
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 Travis Day, Commissioner 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Commissioner 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 

SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 110-225 
 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING LUNA COUNTY IN THEIR OPPOSITION TO THE 
DESIGNATION OF THE MIMBRES PEAKS NATIONAL MONUMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the Sierra County Commission met upon notice of a duly noticed regular 

County Commission Meeting on February 20, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County 
Administration Building, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 4-38-1 (1884) the powers of a county as a 

body politic and corporate shall be exercised by a board of county commissioners; and, 
 

WHEREAS, a private special interest group has put forward a proposal to establish the 
Mimbres Peaks National Monument, which would encompass approximately 245,000 acres of 
federal lands in the Florida, Cooke's Peak, Good Sight, and Tres Hermanas mountains situated 
within Luna County, New Mexico; and 

 
WHEREAS, under the 1906 Act for the Preservation of American Antiquities, presidents 

can unilaterally designate national monuments, by administrative fiat, without any input or 
involvement of the American public, community leaders, or elected officials; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Antiquities Act was enacted before the creation of federal land 

management laws, and was intended to be used in emergency situations to protect historic artifacts, 
and sites of scientific value, from "imminent threat" which in all cases should be confined to the 
smallest area necessary; and  

 
WHEREAS, since its establishment 118 years ago, the Antiquities Act has been misused 

for political purposes by presidents with large scale designations intended to limit specific uses, 
activities, or access to vast areas of public lands; allowing unfettered governmental control and 
hindering the productive use of those lands; and 

 
WHEREAS, on January 27, 2021, President Joseph R. Biden, Jr., issued Executive Order 

14008 entitled Tackling the Climate Crisis at Home and Aboard (86 Fed. Reg. 7,619); and 
 



 
 

Page 2 of 4 
 

WHEREAS, in Section 216 of Executive Order 14008, President Biden directed the 
Secretary of the Interior, in consultation with the Secretary of Agriculture and other senior 
officials, to develop a program to conserve at least 30 percent of the lands and waters in the United 
States by 2030, which was called the “30 x 30" program, but was recently "rebranded" as "America 
the Beautiful"; and 

 
WHEREAS, this monument designation appears to be nothing more than another attempt 

at a federal land grab driven by political motivation, outside interests, and the acquisition of 
personal gain provided through the monetization of our nation's natural assets at the expense of 
hardworking Americans; and 

 
WHEREAS, serious concerns have been raised by an overwhelming majority of members 

from the Luna County community over the exclusion of stakeholders, namely the farmers, 
ranchers, miners, and outdoor enthusiasts of Luna County, both from within and outside of the 
boundaries of the proposed monument; and 

 
WHEREAS, creating additional federal lands and by placing public lands into permanent 

conservation status will cause dramatic and irreversible harm to the economies of many states, 
including New Mexico, and in particular rural counties such as Luna County whose citizens 
depend on multiple use on public lands for their livelihoods; and 
 

WHEREAS, Luna County Board of Commissioners passed Resolution No. 24-15, on 
January 19, 2024, which opposes the establishment of the Mimbres Peaks National Monument; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, on March 22, 2024, the United States Supreme Court is scheduled to hear a 
challenge to the Antiquities Act, which contends that it is the most abused of the federal land 
statutes, particularly important in the western states where the intermingling of federal lands and 
local economies is extensive and intricate; and 

 
WHEREAS, many of New Mexico's businesses and its citizens are involved in or otherwise 

depend on industries that utilize federal lands and their resources, including the oil and gas 
industry, livestock grazing, mining and mineral development, recreational industries, hunting, 
fishing, and other outdoor recreation; and 

 
WHEREAS, these industries are important components of the New Mexico economy, and 

are major contributors to the economic and social wellbeing of our Counties and their citizens. 
 

           NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County, New Mexico, as follows: 
 

1. The Board fully supports Luna County, New Mexico, and its residents, in their opposition 
to the designation of approximately 245,000 acres as the Mimbres Peaks National 
Monument. 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 4 
 

2. The Board opposes the 30 x 30, America the Beautiful, and Agenda 2030 programs, 
including the objective of permanently preserving 30 percent of the Nation's lands in their 
natural state by 2030, or any similar program that will set aside and prevent the productive 
use of millions of acres of our lands. 

 
3. The Board further opposes the designation of lands, whether private lands or government 

lands, in New Mexico as national monuments, wilderness, wilderness study areas, wildlife 
preserves, open space, or other conservation land, thereby restricting public access to such 
lands and preventing the development and productive use of the resources on or within 
such lands. 

 
4. The Board opposes any federal rulemaking, by the Bureau of Land Management, or any 

federal agency, which promotes any non-tangible status goals on public lands as a valid 
multiple use for those lands.  

 
5. The Board does not support any monetization of America's natural assets (i.e. natural 

processes or ecosystem services), or the practice of allowing outside investors and foreign 
interests to have any ownership in those things which belong wholly to the American 
people. 

 
6. The Board supports the continued private ownership of land in New Mexico, recognizing 

the Nation's need for domestic sources of minerals, energy, timber, food, and fiber. 

 
7. The Board recognizes and supports the State of New Mexico’s water rights system, and 

other state laws and programs governing water rights and water use and opposes any 
federal designation of waters and watercourses within the State that would impair or restrict 
water diversions and uses authorized under New Mexico law. 

 
8. The Board supports reasonable national, regional, and global greenhouse gas emissions 

policies and goals that are comprehensive, practical, cost-effective, and do not 
unnecessarily single out specific industries or activities but opposes the use of global 
climate change as an excuse to set aside large tracts of land as preserves or open space to 
fulfill the 30 x 30 program's objectives. 

 
APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 20th day of February, 2024. 

       
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Page 4 of 4 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 Travis Day, Chair 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 2 
 

SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO 110-226 
 

SETTING THE SALARIES OF SHERIFF’S EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT AND THE CHIEF DEPUTY CLERK 
 

  WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, met in a regular 
meeting on February 20, 2024. in the Sierra County Administration Office, 1712 N. Date Street, 
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and,  
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 4-38-1 (1884) the powers of a county as a 
body politic and corporate shall be exercised by a board of county commissioners; and, 
 

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-1-13 (C) (2012) provides in pertinent part that 
“[e]ach county officer shall appoint a deputy or clerk, as allowed by law, who shall take the oath 
of office required of the appointing county officer and shall receive salary as provided by law;” 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-41-5 (1975) provides that “[t]he sheriffs in all the 

counties of this state shall have power to appoint deputies, who shall remain in office at the 
pleasure of such sheriffs; except that in counties which have established a merit system by 
ordinance, the provisions of the ordinance shall control the demotion and discharge of deputies 
and other employees of the sheriff's office, except for one under-sheriff and an executive secretary, 
both of whom shall hold exempt positions;” and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s executive secretary is appointed by the Sheriff and is not subject 

to the terms of the County’s Personnel Policy Ordinance; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Chief Deputy Clerk is appointed by the County Clerk and is not subject 

to the terms of the County’s Personnel Policy Ordinance; and 
 

WHEREAS, provide clear guidance to County administrative personnel and payroll staff, 
the Board of County Commissioners has determined that it is necessary to clarify and restate the 
conditions of employment and the salary & benefits afforded to the Sheriff’s Executive Secretary 
and Chief Deputy Clerk. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Sierra County Board of Commissioners 

that: 
 
1. The Executive Secretary and Chief Deputy Clerk may be appointed at the sole discretion 

of the respective elected official and are terminable at will.   
 

2. The Executive Secretary and Chief Deputy Clerk positions are FLSA Exempt, do not 
accumulate sick or annual leave and are required to work at the time, place and manner 
directed by their respective elected official. 

 
3. Appointed Officials must participate in PERA, unless specifically excluded by the Public 

Employee Retirement Association per law, and are subject the all federal and state wage 



Page 2 of 2 
 

withholding requirements.  
4. The salary rate of the appointed Sheriff’s executive secretary shall be set at 65% of the 

Sheriff’s salary and the Chief Deputy Clerk shall be at 95% of the Sheriff’s salary.   
 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 20th day of February 2024. 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Chairman 
 
______________________________________ 
 Travis Day, Vice-Chairman  
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 



 
Resolution and Order   Page 1 

State of New Mexico 
 
County of Sierra 

§ 
§ 
§ 

Board of Commissioners 
 
Sierra County 

 
Res. 110-227 

A RESOLUTION AND ORDER APPROVING REQUEST OF  
El RIO SOL TRANSMISSION LLC TO USE CERTAIN ROADS IN  

SIERRA COUNTY AND OTHER MATTERS 
 
 

WHEREAS, El Rio Sol Transmission, LLC (including its successors and assigns, 
“RioSol”) contemplates constructing a high voltage electric transmission line (the “Transmission 
Line”) across portions of Sierra County (the “County”); 

 
WHEREAS the construction, operation and maintenance of the Transmission Line will 

require access to, ingress and egress to and from, and crossings of County owned right-of-way and 
County held right-of-way easements and other public ways of County, including shoulders, 
designated for the purpose of vehicular traffic and under the jurisdiction of the County as identified 
in Exhibit A attached hereto (the “County Roads”), including the right of RioSol and its 
contractors, subcontractors, employees, agents, and representatives (the “RioSol Parties”) to use 
the County Roads to transport structures, materials, construction equipment and supplies related 
to the construction of the Transmission Line, and, if necessary, to improve same (the “Road 
Usage”) and to cross over the County Roads with the conductors and cables of the Transmission 
Line (the “Overhead Crossings”); 

 
WHEREAS, by the County’s dedication, use, and/or maintenance of the County Roads and 

the County’s ownership of the right-of-way of the County Roads, the Board of Commissioners of 
the County has the authority on behalf of the County to permit such Road Usage and Overhead 
Crossings; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County and RioSol anticipate that the additional volume of traffic on the 

county roads due to Road Usage may result in repairs, improvements and associated expenses to 
the County, and the County desires to provide certain conditions to RioSol regarding the Road 
Usage so that the County Roads will remain in as good a state of repair as existing before the Road 
Usage and that RioSol be responsible for repairing any damage done the County Roads as a result 
of the Road Usage; and 

 
WHEREAS, RioSol desires to comply with any applicable and currently existing rules, 

ordinances, permits, or regulations of the County (the “County Requirements”) in the 
construction, operation, and maintenance the Transmission Line within the County and for the 
Road Usage, and seeks verification through this resolution of its compliance with any such County 
Requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, there are no County Requirements that would compel RioSol to obtain zoning 

approval, a permit, or an authorization for the construction, operation or maintenance of the 
Transmission Line within the County, except with respect to the County Roads as set forth herein 



 
Resolution and Order   Page 2 

and except for the filing of a permit request for the installation of an overhead utility line across a 
county road on the form provided by the County (the “Permit Request”).  There are no County 
rules or ordinances regarding buffer zones; noise restrictions; shade, shadow, or visibility 
restrictions; or other zoning rules or regulations affecting the proposed construction, operation, or 
maintenance of Transmission Line in the County; 

 
WHEREAS, RioSol seeks the County's permission for such Road Usage and Overhead 

Crossings, and the County has agreed to grant said permission, subject to the provisions hereof. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 

SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO: 

1. That the findings and recitals in the preamble to this Resolution and Order are found to be true 
and correct and are hereby RATIFIED, APPROVED and ADOPTED. 
 

2. That the Board of Commissioners hereby grants permission to RioSol during the planning and 
construction phases of the Transmission Line, and thereafter during the operation and 
maintenance phase of the Transmission Line, until the Transmission Line is completely 
abandoned and/or removed, to use the County Roads for the Road Usages described herein, 
including, but not limited to, for access and egress to and from the Transmission Line and for 
crossings of said County Roads with the Overhead Crossings; provided that with respect to the 
installation of the Overhead Crossings, a Permit Request must be filed.   
 

3. That the permission granted in Ordering Paragraph 2 includes an authorization to conduct geo-
technical and other preliminary construction analysis of such County Roads where necessary 
and to determine whether upgrades to the County Roads (the “Upgrades”) are necessary to 
permit the Road Usage. 
 

4. RioSol will be responsible for reshaping, repair, and/or modification of the County Roads that 
must be performed on the County Roads resulting from the Road Usage that is in excess of the 
usual and customary maintenance operations performed as routine maintenance by the County 
(the “Additional RioSol Maintenance”). 
 

5. RioSol agrees to conduct a pre-construction assessment of the County Roads (the 
“Assessment”) for each Transmission Line to determine the current suitability for the Road 
Usage.  At a minimum, the Assessment will document the following items for the County 
Roads: current load bearing capacity of the County Roads and their bridges or culverts, 
drainage damage/distress, pavement damage/distress, bridge damage/distress, and any 
required expansion of private road entrances from the County Roads.  In addition, the 
Assessment will include the type and classification of vehicles requiring special permitting that 
will be used by the RioSol Parties as part of the Road Usage. The Assessment will describe the 
Additional RioSol Maintenance to be performed by RioSol during the construction of a 
Transmission Line and any Upgrades required, including any construction specifications for 
any additional material added to the County Roads or cuts or widening of the County Roads 
or private entrances as part of the Upgrades.  The Assessment will be provided to Charlene 
Webb, Manager (the “County Representative”) at least sixty (60) days prior to the 
commencement of construction of a Transmission Line in the County.  The County 



 
Resolution and Order   Page 3 

Representative shall have twenty (20) days to submit any proposed changes or revisions to the 
Assessment with respect to the proposed RioSol Additional Maintenance and any Upgrades 
identified and RioSol will incorporate such changes to the extent commercially reasonable and 
if consistent with the obligations of RioSol as set forth herein.   
 

6. As a result of the Assessment, if any of the Road Usage requires Upgrades, RioSol will perform 
such Upgrades at its cost.  The County may inspect such Upgrades after completion thereof, 
and RioSol will perform additional work if needed to cause the Upgrades to meet the same or 
better road standards as in effect at the commencement of such Upgrades.  
 

7. In addition, RioSol must repair any damage to the County Roads caused by its Road Usage so 
that the County Roads will meet the same or better road standards as in effect as of the date of 
such damage to the County Roads. 
 

8. Under no circumstances will RioSol be responsible or liable for any accident, injury, tort, or 
other theory of liability to any third party solely by virtue of this Resolution and Order.  
Furthermore, no third party beneficiary may claim or assert any benefit or right, either directly 
or indirectly, by or through this Resolution and Order.  The County agrees that this Resolution 
and Order does not alter or in any way shift responsibility for ensuring the safety of the County 
Roads from the County to RioSol.   
 

9. RIOSOL AGREES TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE COUNTY, 
ITS COMMISSIONS, AGENCIES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES AND EMPLOYEES 
(COLLECTIVELY THE “INDEMNITEES”) AGAINST ANY AND ALL LOSSES, 
DAMAGES, CLAIMS, EXPENSES AND LIABILITIES, INCLUDING WITHOUT 
LIMITATION, PHYSICAL DAMAGE TO THE ROADS OR PROPERTY OF THE 
COUNTY, WHICH DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, ARISE OUT 
OF, ARE CAUSED BY, OR ARE AS RESULT OF (1) ANY NEGLIGENT, INTENTIONAL, 
OR MALICIOUS  ACT OR OMISSION OF THE RIOSOL PARTIES ARISING OUT OF 
THE ROAD USAGE; OR (2) ANY BREACH OF THIS RESOLUTION AND ORDER BY 
THE  RIOSOL PARTIES (COLLECTIVELY THE “LIABILITIES”).  THIS INDEMNITY 
SHALL INCLUDE, BUT NOT BY WAY OF LIMITATION, THE PAYMENT OF, OR 
REIMBURSEMENT TO, THE COUNTY OF ALL COSTS, EXPENSES, REASONABLE 
ATTORNEY’S FEES, DAMAGE AWARDS WHICH MAY BE INCURRED, OR RESULT 
IN ANY MANNER, FROM ANY LIABILITIES.  THIS INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 
SHALL SURVIVE THE TERMINATION OF THIS RESOLUTION AND ORDER 
 

10. RioSol agrees to provide insurance at all times during construction and such insurance will 
include: (1) if any employees, Worker’s compensation insurance in compliance with the laws 
of the State of New Mexico (2) Commercial General Liability insurance with minimum limits 
of $1,000,000.00 per occurrence, and (3) Automobile Liability insurance.  Certificates of 
Insurance will be provided to the County upon request by the County.   
 

11. RioSol shall be responsible for obtaining any other permits or agreements which any 
governmental entity other than the County may require to operate or move its vehicles on the 
County Roads.   



 
Resolution and Order   Page 4 

 
12. This Resolution and Order shall not serve to relieve any operator of a RioSol Party vehicle 

from complying with applicable speed limits or weight restrictions. 

13. Any widening or cuts occurring inside the existing County Road rights-of-way as a result of 
the Upgrades shall remain in place after construction of the Transmission Line, unless the 
County specifically requests that such cuts or widening be removed. 

 
14. Upon request of the County, the RioSol Parties shall obtain and post traffic signs at various 

locations as an aid to traffic management.  All such signage or postings shall comply with the 
applicable County Requirements. 

 
15. The RioSol Parties shall provide, erect and maintain all necessary barricades, suitable and 

sufficient lights, hazard beacons, other signs, and provide a sufficient number of flaggers and 
take all necessary precautions for the protection of the work and the safety of the public during 
the construction of a Transmission Line. 

 
16. The County Representative and/or its designee shall have reasonable access to the County 

Roads for inspection of such roads, culverts and adjacent ditches. 
 

17. RioSol shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and regulations related to the 
construction of the Transmission Line. 

18. In the event that a County Road becomes impassable due to reasons outside of the reasonable 
control of the RioSol Parties which requires access on or across other County roads or rights 
of way other than the County Roads, the County grants the RioSol Parties the right to use such 
other roads for so long as the County Roads are impassible, provided that the RioSol Parties 
shall be responsible for repairing any damage done to such roads as a result of such use by the 
RioSol Parties. 
 

19. Upon the completion of RioSol’s construction operations of a Transmission Line, RioSol, at 
its own cost and expense, shall within sixty (60) days restore the portions of the County Roads 
used by RioSol to the same or better condition as existed prior to the commencement of 
RioSol’s construction operations. Should RioSol fail to restore the roadways to the condition 
existing prior to the execution of this Resolution and Order within sixty (60) days from the 
date of completion of RioSol’s construction operations of a Transmission Line, RioSol hereby 
agrees to reimburse and indemnify the County for all costs and expenses incurred by the 
County to repair, restore or resurface the portions of the County Roads used by RioSol to the 
same condition which existed prior to RioSol’s construction operations. In addition, emergency 
repairs resulting from RioSol’s construction operations and determined to be necessary by the 
County, may be made by the County with RioSol to reimburse the County for all reasonable 
costs incurred by the County in making such emergency repairs. 
 

20. Any Overhead Crossing shall meet the minimum overhead clearance of the New Mexico 
Department of Transportation for such County Road crossed or the latest version of the 
National Electrical Safety Code (NESC).  
 



 
Resolution and Order   Page 5 

21. All notices and oral or written communications relating to this Resolution and Order shall be 
forwarded as follows: 
 
To RioSol:     To the County: 

Name: El Rio Sol Transmission, LLC Name: Board of County Commissioners 
Address: 3610 N. 44th Street, Suite 250 Address: 1712 N. Date Street 
   Phoenix, AZ 85018   Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Attn:   David Getts    Attn: Charlene Webb, Manager 
Phone:   (602) 808-2004   Phone:   575-894-6215 
      

22. If any portion of this Resolution and Order is held invalid, it shall have no effect upon the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Resolution and Order. This Resolution and Order may 
be partially assigned to the New Mexico Renewable Energy Transmission Authority, a public 
body of the State of New Mexico, politic and corporate, separate and apart from the State 
(“RETA”) constituting a governmental instrumentality for the performance of essential public 
functions, and RioSol (excluding RETA) agrees to continue to be bound by the terms and 
conditions of this Resolution and Order. 

 
23. This Resolution and Order shall be binding upon the parties hereto, their heirs, executors, 

administrators, successors and assigns. 
 

24. This Resolution and Order shall be interpreted and controlled by the laws of the State of New 
Mexico.  Any action arising out of or related to this Resolution and Order shall be brought only 
in the state or federal courts in and for the State of New Mexico. 

  



 
Resolution and Order   Page 6 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED at this public hearing of the Sierra County Board of 
Commissioners, at which a quorum was present, on the __ day of __________________, 2024. 

 
_________________________ 
James E. Paxon, Chairman 
Commissioner District 1 

 
 
_________________________ 
Travis Day, Vice Chairman 
Commissioner District 2 
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner District 3 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 

  
 



 
Resolution and Order   Page 7 

  
AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 
 
El Rio Sol Transmission, LLC, a Delaware 
limited liability company 
 
 
By: ________________________________ 
 David Getts 
 Manager 
 

 

 

 



 
Exhibit A to Resolution and Order   Solo Page 

“Exhibit A” 

County Roads 


